
Agenda 
 

City of Lucas  
Parks and Open Space Board Meeting  

April 25, 2017  
7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Parks & Open Space Board Meeting will be held on April 
25, 2017 at 7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas at which time the following 
agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Parks & Open 
Space Board many convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from 
the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

Call to Order 
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

Regular Agenda 
 
1. Consider approval of the minutes of the March 28, 2017 Parks and Open Space Board 

regular meeting. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson)  
 
2. Discuss and clarify the goals and objectives of the Parks and Open Space Board. (Parks 

Board)  
 
3. Discuss and consider becoming a Tree City USA community in association with taking 

part in an Arbor Day event. (Parks Board Member Bill Esposito) 
 
4. Receive update regarding the East Winningkoff Trailhead project. (Parks Board Member 

Chris Vanhorn)  
 
5. Discuss the Trails Master Plan and possible trail connections (Parks Board Member Chris 

Vanhorn).  
 
6.  Discuss future plans for the Lucas Community Park. (Parks Board Chairman David Rhoads) 
 
7. Adjournment. 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002-7651 and on the City’s website at 
www.lucastexas.us by 5:00 p.m. on or before April 21, 2017. 
 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
 



In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 972-912-1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Page 1  Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
February 28, 2017 

              
 

 
 

Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
March 28, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
City Hall – 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 
 

Call to Order 
 
Chairman Rhoads called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Parks Board Members Present: 
Chairman David Rhoads 
Vice-Chairman Chris Vanhorn 
Member Kenneth Patterson 
Member Brenda Rizos 
Alternate Member Joanne Doucet 
 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
Executive Assistant/Special Projects 
Coordinator Cathey Bonczar  
 
 

Parks Board Members Absent: 
Alternate Member Bill Esposito 

City Council Liaison 
Councilmember Tim Baney 

 
Chairman Rhoads determined that a quorum was present and reminded all in attendance to silence 
their cell phones. The Board conducted the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Regular Agenda 
 

1. Consider approval of the minutes of the February 28, 2017 Parks and Open Space 
Board regular meeting.  

 
MOTION :  A motion was made by Ms. Rizos, seconded by Mr. Patterson to approve the minutes as presented.  

The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  
 
2. Receive update regarding the East Winningkoff Trailhead project.  
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn provided a project status summary.  He noted that the 
grant had been received, and the restrooms had been ordered and are expected to be delivered in 
approximately six weeks.  The remaining portions of the project were out to bid. Bids are due by 
April 12, 2017.  $129,000 was budgeted, and the expected completion date for the project is July 
2017.  The use of an easement received from NTMWD and the connection point to the trail were 
briefly discussed.  



Page 2  Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
February 28, 2017 

 
3. Discuss details of the Keep Lucas Beautiful (KLB) program to include:  
 

A. KLB affiliate status/annual report update  
B. KLB annual training requirements  
C. Keep Texas Beautiful Annual Conference  
D. KLB Cleanup event assignments  

 
Executive Assistant/Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar informed the Parks Board that 
she had completed the training requirements for last year, and had filed the annual report as required 
to maintain the KLB affiliate status for this year.  Ms. Bonczar stated she would be attending the 
Keep Texas Beautiful Annual Conference in San Antonio in June, and asked that the Board advise 
her of any specific educational sessions that they would like her to focus on while there.   
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn informed the Parks Board that there were currently 14 
volunteers signed up for the cleanup event, and would like the Board to attend as well.  Supplies 
including gloves, trash bags, and safety vests for the event had been ordered.  
 
Mr. Patterson informed the Board that he had contacted the Dallas Cowboy organization and 
attempted to get an autographed picture of Dak Prescot that could be used as a give-away at the 
cleanup event.  Based on how his request was received, he did not expect to receive the picture.   
 
4. Discuss details of the City of Lucas participating in the Scenic City Certification 

Program.  
 
Executive Assistant/Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar informed the Board that the City 
was applying for the Scenic City Certification.  This was the first time the City had applied for this 
certification.  The application is due by April 30.  The Board discussed the differences between the 
KLB membership and the Scenic City Certification.  City Manager Joni Clarke and Development 
Services Director Joe Hilbourn explained the merits of program and the benefits of going through 
the certification process.  
 
5. Discuss and consider holding quarterly meetings of the Parks and Open Space Board.  
 
Ms. Rizos presented a suggestion for meeting quarterly instead of monthly.   
 
Board Members and City Staff discussed the role and responsibility of the Parks Board, and the 
relationship between the Board and the City.  They reviewed areas where the Board could take on 
additional projects that are meaningful to the citizens, the possibility of assisting with writing grants, 
the importance of good communication between the Board and the City, and the Board taking a 
more active role in creating the agenda.  
 
Chairman Rhoads thought quarterly meetings would be too infrequent for the Board to be effective.   
 
Vice-Chairman Vanhorn suggested they refer to the project list from an earlier meeting, review and 
prioritize it, and pick one or two projects to work on.   
 



Page 3  Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
February 28, 2017 

Councilmember Baney suggested that the members view themselves as an advisory Board to Staff.  
He suggested the Board set an agenda item for their next meeting to discuss the project list. The 
Board could pick one or two projects from the list to work on and follow the plans from start to 
finish. This would drive agenda items and create focus for the meetings.  The Board can bring 
project suggestions to staff at any time, and staff will evaluate the project for feasibility of 
implementation.  He suggested the Board take a more active part in supporting Founders Day by 
having a booth at the event.  This gives them the opportunity to let citizens know who they are and 
what they do, and to listen to citizens about what they would like to see happen.   
 
The Board agreed that they should continue to meet monthly, and that suggestions for agenda items 
should go to Chairman Rhoads and Vice-Chairman Vanhorn for approval, and then forwarded to 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson.   
 
City Manager Joni Clarke presented each board member with a copy of the ordinance outlining their 
goals and structure.   
 
6. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION :  A motion was made by Mr. Vanhorn, seconded by Mr. Patterson to adjourn the meeting at 8:24 pm.  

The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  
 
 
 
APPROVE:       ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
David Rhoads, Chairman    Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



Tree City USA:
Growing Strong Communities



Introduction
• Value
• Program
• Benefits
• Standards





VALUE

Trees…
• Infrastructure
• Health
• Legacy
• Wise Investment

Worth Our Time.
Worth Our Resources.



VALUE
Humans instinctively prefer 
natural settings 
• Increases employee 

productivity
• Reduces symptoms of ADHD 
• Decreases crime
• Eases stress and anxiety



VALUE

• Increased property value

• Treed streets = more frequent
and longer shopping

• Shoppers spend more 
for goods and parking



VALUE



VALUE 100
mature trees 

catch 

200,000
gallons of 

rainwater/year



VALUE

100 Trees Over 40 Years:
Benefits = $161,000

Energy
Air Quality

Runoff
Real Estate

Costs = $89,000
Planting/Pruning
Removal/Disposal

Irrigation
Sidewalk Repair

Litter
Legal/Administration

Pay Off: $72,000





PROGRAM

Tree City USA Provides 
Community Forestry Program:

• Direction 

• Technical assistance

• Public attention

• National recognition



Longevity – Launched in 1976 

Impact – Over 135 million people 
live in/near a Tree City

Network – Support from over 
3,400 recognized communities

PROGRAM





BENEFITS

Framework 
for Action
• Provides direction 

• Systematic management 
of tree resources



BENEFITS

Education
• Assistance through the

application process

• Online resources

• Technical advice



BENEFITS

Public Image
• Quality of life

• Influence

• Desirability



BENEFITS

Citizen Pride



BENEFITS

Publicity
• Presentation of the 

Tree City USA award

• Arbor Day celebration

• Public education





1. Tree Board or Department
2. Tree Care Ordinance
3. Community Forestry Program 

With Annual Budget of at Least 
$2 Per Capita

4. Arbor Day Observance 
and Proclamation

STANDARDS



1. Tree Board or Department
• May be a professional forester/arborist, an entire 

forestry department or a tree board

• Group of volunteer citizens charged by ordinance with 
developing and administering a tree management program

• Legally responsible for the management of the 
community’s trees

STANDARDS



2. Tree Care Ordinance
• Establishes a tree board and 

gives it responsibilities

• Guidance for planting, maintaining 
and removing trees on public property

• Provides an opportunity to set good 
policy that is legally enforceable

STANDARDS



3. Community Forestry Program With 
Annual Budget of at Least $2 Per Capita

• Percentage of city workers’ salaries spent on tree care
• Tree planting/watering/fertilizing
• Equipment rental/purchase/maintenance
• Arbor Day expenses
• Tree care conferences, workshops, memberships
• Value of volunteer labor

STANDARDS



4. Arbor Day Observance 
and Proclamation

Opportunity to inform and engage
the broader community through:
• Tree Planting
• Awards Ceremony
• Education

STANDARDS



Steps to become a Tree City USA

• Meet the Four Standards

• Complete and upload application documents 
each year by December 31 - No Fee!

• Apply at arborday.org/TreeCityUSA

STANDARDS



Summary
• Value
• Program
• Benefits
• Standards



Purpose through Process
Trees…

Worth Our Time. Worth Our Resources.

“A town is saved, not more by the righteous men in it 
than by the woods…that surround it.”

-Henry David Thoreau



Thank You
Learn more at 

arborday.org/treecityusa


	00 - 04-25-17 regular agenda
	Agenda
	City of Lucas
	Parks and Open Space Board Meeting
	April 25, 2017
	7:00 PM
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Parks & Open Space Board Meeting will be held on April 25, 2017 at 7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As ...
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda
	Certification



	01a - 03-28-2017 POS minutes
	Parks and Open Space Board Meeting
	March 28, 2017
	7:00 p.m.
	City Hall – 665 Country Club Road
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda


	03a - tree-city-usa-for-communities
	Slide Number 1
	Introduction
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Summary
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28


